# **Real Time Updating System for Dynamic Report**

## **UTP Energy Website Enhancement:**

### **Delivering Real Time Mission Oriented Research Information Reports**

By

Fahmi Shairazi Bin Sulaiman

Dissertation submitted in partial fulfilment of the requirements for the Bachelor of Technology (Hons) (Business Information Systems)

September 2011

Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS Bandar Seri Iskandar 31750 Tronoh Perak Daruł Ridzuan Malaysia.

#### Abstract

The current UTP energy website does provide the information for the user/lecturers to view their current report. The report being made need the approval from the website admin which give impact to the business process and making the users particularly the lecturers not motivate to use the current UTP energy website. The solution demanded at this state is to have the lecturers to have their login ID and given authority to update their own mission oriented report on the fly. The study will consist of how the approach to be implemented and to be deliver as to provide a better solution for the energy website to post their progress report of the mission oriented report so that their subordinate may view each other current progress on the fly without any delay caused by the interference of the website administrator which is the only person who have the authority to publish the report being made by the user/lecturers.

#### Acknowledgement

Alhamdulillah I bid for granting me the strength and perseverance necessary to complete this project. The past 7 months have indeed been an amazing experience and journey to embark on. I have learnt so many things from scratch until the completion of my own proposed system.

I would like to sincerely thank my one and only supervisor, Mr. Faizal Ahmad Fadzil for the undying help he has given my colleagues and I throughout the whole 2 semester of Final Year Project. He has been very kind in guiding me to complete my project at this rate of completion thus far. Although there were many complications met throughout the whole journey, yet, he managed to guide us patiently with a strong sense of direction in this project. Ideas and suggestions kept pouring endlessly from him and that have indeed helped me a lot in getting a lot of problems solved. Thank you, Mr Faizal for your support and guidance. Only Allah knows how to repay such kindness in equal.

I would also like to take this opportunity to thank my family especially my mother for always being there for me. The warmth of love given has always ensures a high morale confidence and perseverance in completing this project for me. They have been giving me a great deal of encouragement, advices and support which have led me to the completion of my current project today.

Lastly, thanks to my colleagues for the continuous support and guidance, and also to UTP; especially to the CIS and ITMS Department for their patience and opportunities to allow my project to reach greater heights than it can actually be. Alhamdulillah again and may prayers be with all of you.

Thank you

## CERTIFICATION OF APPROVAL

## **Real Time Updating System for Dynamic Report**

By

Fahmi Shairazi Bin Sulaiman

A project dissertation submitted to the

**Business Information System Programme** 

Universiti Teknologi PETRONAS

in partial fulfilment of the requirement for the

BACHELOR OF TECHNOLOGY (Hons)

(BUSINESS INFORMATION SYSTEM)

Approved by,

(Mr. Faizal Ahmad Fadzil)

### UNIVERSITI TEKNOLOGI PETRONAS

#### TRONOH, PERAK

September 2011

### CERTIFICATION OF ORIGINALITY

This is to certify that I am responsible for the work submitted in this project, that the original work is my own except as specified in the references and acknowledgements, and that the original work contained herein have not been undertaken or done by unspecified sources or persons.

FAHMA SHAIRAZI BIN SULAIMAN

## **Table of Contents**

CHAPTER 1	INTRODUCTION	1
	1.1 Background	1
	1.2 Problem Statement	3
	1.3 Objectives	4
	1.4 Scope of Study	5
CHAPTER 2	LITERATURE REVIEW	6
	2.1 Different Types of Portals	6
	2.1.1 Public Portals	6
	2.1.2 Corporate Portals	7
	2.2 Content Management Systems (CMS)	9

CHAPTER 3	METHODOLOGY	11
	3.1 Research Methodology	11
	3.1.1 Phase 1: Critical Review of Related Works	13
	3.1.2 Phase 2: CMS Setup	14
	3.1.3 Phase 3: Design and Development of Functionality	
	Websites	15
	3.1.4 Phase 4: Evaluation, Testing, and Further	
	Enhancements	15

CHAPTER 4	RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS16
	4.1 Project Planning16
	4.2 System Architecture17
	4.3 Activity Diagram19
	4.4 Interface Design20
	4.5 Project Interface
	4.5.1 The Authorization Level of User for the Systems31

CHAPTER 5	CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION	34

REFERENCES	

# CHAPTER 1 INTRODUCTION

#### 1.1 Background

Recent technology had improved day by day, so does the website and portal which have been the main source of information for the person who crave and demand for them. Most of the time, business people require the information to be fast, accurate and reliable. The current business process in the UTP energy website provided the source of information to the lecturers as well as the people who may want to view the information in the energy website. The main concern for the research I to enhance the current UTP energy website in order to provide a better solutions for the lecturers to update their mission oriented report and yet to be publish at the click of the refresh button. This literally helps the lecturers and the participants in the energy website to update their subordinate about their current progress and also maintaining good relationship among the users in the UTP energy website.

A CMS is a collection of scripts that separates content from it presentation. Its main features are the ease of creation and editing of content and dynamic web pages. CMS are usually very sophisticated and can have newsfeed, forums, and online stores and are easily edited. More and more websites nowadays are moving toward a site powered by CMS. Most content management systems are expensive but there are an increasing number of open sources alternatives becoming available. According to Barrie, open source CMS have become increasingly more reliable and are now being used for important projects in many companies, non-for-profits, and organization (Barrie, 2008).

A CMS separates out responsibilities of developing a website. The web designer can concern himself with the design, which means that nontechnical people can be responsible for the content. The modern CMS usually define by its capability to manage and publish content. Most do far more, having the capability to add on a wide range of extensions or add-ons to increase functionality of the site.

The purpose of this paper is to provide solution to the UTP energy website users which to have a real time updating for dynamic report. The functionality requirement by the user was to have their mission oriented report to be updated on the fly. The study will consist of how the approach to be implemented and to be deliver as to provide a better solution for the energy website to post their progress report of the mission oriented report so that their subordinate may view each other current progress on the fly without any delay caused by the interference of the website administrator which the only person who have the authority to publish the report being made by the user/lecturers.

#### 1.2 Problem Statement

Due to technology advances and the wide dissemination of information, many institutions suffer from information overload and need to apply information management to deal with this information chaos in the digital world. Most of the time, this information is stored in computer hardware in a unorganized way, spread in databases, rendering access to relevant knowledge difficult, and compromising employees' productivity on their daily activities. Consequently, many modern enterprises lack a global view of their own data and information.

The current UTP provide solution for the website using the most popular content management system (CMS) which is powered by Joomla! The current website allocates the webpage specifically for the lecturers to post and share their research in the web. The current UTP website does not give authority for the lecturers to edit their research article content regard to mission oriented research. The lecturers find that information are really important for them as they need to get updates from their subordinates about what is going on about their current project status. The administrator for UTP website does not provide the lecturers to update their mission oriented report independently without interference of the ITMS to approve and publish what the lecturer had post in their research article. The current business nature only allows the lecturers to contact the admin of the UTP website in event if they need to update their current projects article and later to be approved by the website administrator. The current nature of business is time consuming and not efficient for the lecturers to update their project research article in the website on the fly. This also will impact on the business perspective as a whole.

### Objectives

The objectives of this project are:

- To design and develop a new edit functionality to UTP energy website for the lecturers to update their reports and articles in real time basis.
- To provide solution to the admin and the lecturers so that both party may benefits from the information being publish at user level.
- To determine the successful of the information being shared in the real time without any interference from the administration part.
- To compare and benchmark the studies of this project with the current UTP energy website.
- To increase awareness among the lecturers and the team members regard to their respective research team about the latest update in the UTP energy website on mission oriented research (MOR) report.
- To provide the ease of usability for the team members to update the mission oriented research (MOR) report anytime, anywhere by having the authority to update on the fly.
- To increase efficiency of the updates by having the mission oriented research (MOR) report updates on the fly.

#### 1.3 Scope of Study

This research covers only the UTP energy website which requires an enhancement for putting new functionalities to the current website. The edit button functionality is the main concern as the lecturers requires such idea for them to update their research report and they wish to see it being posted after they save their reports. This mini enhancement may look small but in business impact point of view, this enhancement will definitely change the current user's behavior as they can post their report in real time by simple click instruction and the report is generated and updated in the energy website. The reports being made are really important among the participants in the UTP energy website as the information is 'KING'. Real time updating for dynamic report is a new approach for the UTP energy website users as they may have the authority to publish their work and report without waiting the admin to approve their report before being publish in the energy website.

A content management system (CMS) tools such as Joomla! and Xampp, a localhost network will be installed for energy website setup. Website simulations will be shown for the purpose of testing and to investigate alternative design solutions for the UTP energy website. Outcomes of the simulation testing will be evaluated, tested, validated and benchmarked against similar results in the current UTP energy website.

# CHAPTER 2 LITERATURE REVIEW

#### 2.1 Different Types of Portals

There are two ways of classifying portals: one related to their environment (public or corporate) and another one related to their functions (decision support and/or collaborative processing). Since the concern of this literature review is the enhancement for the UTP energy corporate website/portal, the functional classification will take into account only the corporate environment.

#### Portal environments

Despite technological similarities, public and corporate portals have completely different purposes for different users.

#### 2.1.1 Public Portal

The public portal, also called Internet portal, web portal or consumer portal, provides a single interface to the immense network of Internet servers. Its purpose is to attract the Internet community. The larger the number of visitors, the greater the probability of establishing virtual consumer groups that will potentially buy what portal advertisers want to sell. Similar to television, radio and the press, the public portal establishes a unidirectional relationship with its visitors and has become a new marketing media.

According to Eckerson (1999c), since the middle 1990s, public portals have experienced three different stages of evolution, referential, personalized and interactive. The public portal have only administrator to customize the website. The public may only see the website as a visitor and they could not do anything to manipulate the information because the public visitors do not have the authority and permission from the website administrator. Only the admin will do the changes regarding the advertisement for the consumers.

final Parsent) Ed pres to general Constitution and removal (*
Sign Up It's free and always will be.
First Hame: Lost Name: Your email address: Rauntae email address: New Pailmontd:
I em: Select Gender: • Birthday: Day: • Month: • Year: • Why do 2 med to provide me date of beth? Signs tip

Example 2.1: Public Portal

### 2.1.2 Corporate Portal

In the institutional world, the websites or portal's purpose is to display and supply business-specific information, in a certain context, helping users of corporate information systems find the information they need to face their competitors (Reynolds & Koulopoulos, 1999). The corporate portal is considered by Reynolds and Koulopoulos an evolution from Intranets, incorporating, to this technology, new tools that enable identification, capture, storage, retrieval and distribution of great amounts of information from multiple internal and external sources, useful for enterprise individuals and teams.

Corporate portals have also followed the same evolutionary stages experienced by public portals, though in a shorter period of time. Eckerson (1999c) identifies four generations of corporate portals and considers that, in 1999, the corporate portals available on the market jumped from the first to the third generation. Moreover, Eckerson believes that corporate portals have a potential to extend beyond the capabilities offered by public portals.

The corporate portal differs raging from the functionalities of the website to the users and the presentation of the websites. The corporate portal like UTP energy website does have the similar presentation as the other corporate website in the internet. The corporate portal may have the admin who can login to the page and have the authority to manipulate the information inside the corporate portal. The users today prefer a new enhancement to the current corporate website which they can login as well as to update their article in the website. With that, all the team members can share their current project and this will have a great business impact to the organization.



Example 2.2: Corporate Portal

### 2.2 Content Management System (CMS)

Content management is a various types of information, or content, are available across the Internet. This content requires organization through several different means, depending on its type. Controlling this information in an orderly fashion is known as content management. Also known as CM, content management includes any technologies, techniques, and processes that a company may require maintaining their content. Such systems may include publishing platforms, collection support, file publishing and sharing, and many other types of management. Some businesses may develop internal processes for these means. Others may hire specific companies that specialize in managing content, or purchase software to help them manipulate their files. (Barrie, 2008).

Digital content can be much more complex. It may exist in multimedia files, such as video or audio files. (Barrie, 2008). When a business has these types of files to manage, they may require additional technical support and virtual storage space. Usually, a content management system, or CMS, is used to control content management. Not only does such a system vary with the types of content being managed, but also with the needs the business owning the content may have. Some businesses may only have one or two employees requiring access to the content. This situation may only require simple content management tools.

Other businesses may need multiple workers to edit or view their content. These companies might need more complex content management systems to keep their information organized. If this occurs, training for the system is usually required for employees as well. Systems for managing content may also provide other tools for companies. In addition to publishing, editing, and storing, some systems allow for collaboration between employees. This can be helpful when employees are remote or do not all work at the same location. Tasks can often be assigned through a content management system as well. Many businesses prefer a content management system that allows for either archiving or deleting old content that is no longer in use to save space and revenue. (Barrie, 2008).

When using this type of system, several roles are usually allowed. A creator is provided with the tools to create new content and make changes to it, while an editor can make changes as well and may have a slightly different set of tools available. The publisher may be responsible for preparing content for public viewing, while an administrator oversees the whole process and grants permissions for task and tool access. Other employees may be granted viewer or guest access in order to view, but not change, documents.

# CHAPTER 3 METHODOLOGY

### 3.1 Research Methodology

The preferred research methodology as for this project will be the usage of Rapid Application Development method also known as (RAD). This project will require a lot of requirement before being integrate into a system therefore making prototyping as the best mean of research methodology for this research. This is due to the nature of this methodology for such a short period of time. Below is the research methodology's diagram for further understanding:



Figure 1.3 Research Methodology: Prototyping

This methodology was chosen best due to the need for rapid program development. This project has about 31 weeks for total completion with a lot of to be explored. The main projected activities that will be carried out require a lot of trial and errors. Therefore having a prototype will allow changes to be made to the whole system before it can be finally implemented successfully into a working system.

In the planning stage, this project aims to understand the system in general terms. Most of the analyses involved in planning are in getting the timeline right as well as to compare the current work to the previous work. Planning is how the project will manipulate its limited resources to full use upon completion of the project [8].

Initial analysis will see further as to the items necessary for the implantation of the system in general. Note that currently, there will be a certain text pre-processing models which will be tested out in order to achieve the objective. Hence, in the initial analysis phase, the project will lay down its entire possible completion route and will be documented for further references. Based on this project, the initial analysis phase and planning have both been completed based on the Gantt chart attached in the appendix section. Furthermore, FYP1 only requires for the project to be completed up until this phase. The prototyping phase will be conducted intensely in FYP2 later on in September.

During the final stage of this methodology, project will modify the system and tune it to its best condition before presenting it as a system to the shareholders later on in FYP2. However, due to the time and financial constraints presented, the quality of the system might not be at its best but certainly possible for completion.

### **Data gathering**

The survey had been done to 40 users of current UTP MOR website. The current active members in the UTP MOR particularly in energy mission oriented website. Out of 40 users, 38 agreed with the proposed system as they require the edit capability for them to edit their article in UTP MOR energy websites. Most of the user needs this due to the lack of competency of the IT admin who always delay or deliver late in publishing the information in the UTP MOR. The users/lecturers need the current result/report regarding to their research they have involved in so that they can be more alert with new updates of current findings/result in the article or team members report regard to respective research team members itself.



Figure 1.3 Research Methodology: Prototyping

#### 3.1.1 Phase 1: Critical Review of Related Works

The project is initiated with a detailed background study on the website analysis regard to content management system (CMS) open source. The functional requirement for the edit button is the main concern as to provide the user of UTP energy website the authority to click edit and writing their mission oriented report, customizing the report and share them once they finish editing their own reports.

#### 3.1.2 Phase 2: CMS Setup

Preparation for setup includes identifying and planning on the feasibility and procurement of tools and parts to design the optimization mechanism. Installation of the Joomla! CMS, Apache server localhost, mySQL, and PhpmyAdmin are required to run the simulations. Modeling and analysis tools will be used to improve the viability of the proposed system. This phase completes when a Joomla! CMS model is built to support the development of an optimization user requirement in the next phase.

#### 3.1.3 Phase 3: Design and Development of Functionality Website

In this phase, the user's article content can be edit by using the new edit function to the users/lecturers who obtain the login authority from the admin. This phase involves the designing and analyzing several new plug-in to be install within the Joomla! CMS at the administration level. The function would give the users the authority to login as the valid user and edit the information. The information edited later to be publish on real time without a need of the admin to for approval. Simulations of the proposed solution will reveal its effectiveness in the new enhanced energy website and demonstrate the relationship between the users/lecturers to edit their articles content on real time.

#### 3.1.4 Phase 4: Evaluation, Testing, and Further Enhancements

Results of the simulations will be evaluated against the current energy website which is currently live in the UTP website. Testing is conducted through simulations from the local host before being live to the UTP server. Repeatation of phase 2 and 3 may be necessary to introduce fixes in the optimization mechanism before the final solution can be released and tested in live environment. Continuous integration and enhancements are applied in phase four. A key outcome of phase 4 would be the dissertation.

# **CHAPTER 4**

# **RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS**

ţ

# 4.1 Project Planning

No.	Detail							Week		: در ۲۰۰				
		1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	13
1	Title Selection / Proposal													
2	Confirmation of Proposed Title			X										
3	Preparation of Extended Proposal				• •									
4	Extended Proposal Submission						X							
5	Preparation for Proposal Defense													
6	Proposal Defense and Progress Evaluation									X.				
7	Preparation of Interim Report													
8	Interim Report Submission											X		
9	Technical Report												i . 	
10	Final Submission													<b>X</b>

Table 4.1: Gantt Chart

.

# 4.2 System Architecture



Figure 4.1: System architecture of Real time updating for dynamic report

Figure 4.1: System architecture of Real time updating for dynamic report. From the system architecture, it is understood that the system will be managed by administrator. The administrator will managed the centralized database of the website from the back end of the system, where all relevant information is stored. The other authorized users of the website will need to acknowledge the super administrator. There will be no sign up features for the system, as every authorized user will need to be verified by the administrator. Administrator will register the users and will give them the login and password for the users to login and edit their Mission Oriented Research report (MOR). They will have the authority to manage the information and each users (authors) will be assigning into respective research team and only the team members can update their own Mission Oriented Research report (MOR).

Any misleading on the update part can be traced by the super admin and the admin will know the person in charge for updating the particular report in the Mission Oriented Research report (MOR) articles. The general user can view the articles that being posted or updated but they does not have the authority to manipulate the information as such. In the login area, there will be an edit functionality which enables the users (authors) to update their team Mission Oriented Research report (MOR) and once they complete the update, the users (authors) will need to save the update and later to be posted in the energy website.





Figure 4.2: Activity diagram of Real time updating for dynamic report

# 4.4 Interface design

# Back end of system/website.

Une # vald overhame and passedor to per access to the administrative backward	ation Login	series and		
The for size from a page	Passaoid			
0	Language	Service		
pinet a			log m O	
		1		
		-		
Journal is the ad	Neare released under the ONO	CONTRACTOR LEVES		
Journal is has ad	teant released under the OSC	CENTS PLOK LOUTS		
correcti a tea ad	ward released under the ONU	anera Public Loors		
Journaliti e tea ku	hand internet under the Ohu	Canera Public Lears		
Journald is the so	hang rolessed under the Ofic	Calify Public Learns		

will key in their username and password

in order to enable them to login.



Administration control centre:

The authorized users were given permission

to add and update/manage their articles.

Artic	le Manager: Add New Article		~	8 1	8 6	3
			The St	eve & Cante Save	Alleé Can	Cal.
New Article		* Publishing Options				
Title		Created by	Service States	Servit Liver		
41.25		Created by areas				
Category	Sample Data Adview 🗶	Created Date		33		
State	Published	Start Publishing		20		
Access Permasions	State	Finish Publishing		m		
Language	4	* Activity Options				
Featured	14 m	* Metadata Options				
80	4					
Article Text						
8/9/	eei 新華道道:Stries + Farayaph +					
「日日」	·····王王子弟~~					
- 2	ж. н. 13					

to update the Mission Oriented

Research report (MOR).

Account Listenia   Name   Listyn hame   Listyn hame   Password   Continn Password   Password   Continn Password   Continn Password   Password   Continn P										
Name Saget User   Login Name else   Passuogi Baskend Tangganga   Contine Passuogi Ling User   Passuogi<	Account Details					· Planie Lettines				
Lign Name we	Name	Super User				Railand Tananite Dine	the Market W		1773	
Passaged Contron Pageyeong Encal Pageyeong Encal Pageyeong Encal Pageyeong Encal Pageyeong Encal Pageyeong Encal Pageyeong Encal Pageyeong Pageyeong Encal Pageyeong	Login Name 1	atro				Barland' mouths	in here a			
Contine Paragenerie   Ental   Registration Date   2015 10 / 2015 10 / 2015 10 / 201   Lach Yish 2018   2018 10 / 2015 10 / 2015   Resistration System amaile   No   Resistration System amaile   Resistration System amaile   No   Resistration System amaile   No   Resistration System amaile   No   Resistration System amaile   Resistration System	Passa01					Everland Lans and	Liter Date: N			
Email #Reser   Registration Date 2011 10 / 2 / 51 / 53 / 31   Leat Yind Date 2011 10 / 2 / 51 / 53 / 31   Receive System sense No   Book PreLiser 9 No   Pook 10   Pook 10   Replaned   Anthron 2ble   Anthron 2ble   Pook   Pook   Pook   Pook   Pook   Pook   Pook   Pook   Pook	Confirm Paypelord					Entry	they been a	100		
Registration Date 2014 10 / 74 (15 %4.54)   Lact Vist Date 2015 10 / 24 (15 %4.54)   Receive Syntematerials No   No * No   Book * No   Variaget - 4/   Receive Syntematerials   Receive Syntematerials No   Puok - 4/   Receive Syntematerials   Receive Syntematerials No   Puok - 4/   Puok   Receive Syntematerials   Receive Syntematerials   Puok   Syntematerials   Receive Syntematerials	Email 1					exact film	Con Date of		123	
Lact Yind Cale 2(F) to 5(F) to 5(F) Receive System amain No Pres BOX Trd Lace No Ne C 4/ Assigned Bleer Genups Public Variage/ Adventsbab/ Repatiend Attra Editr Public Fibmire	Registration Date	2018-02112-0215	128			Tania Ziriw	Lifes Carlor			
Recentle System emails No Pres Book Preliber Pro Assigned there Groups Puol Nanger Administration Repaired Estar Puol Puol	Last Visit Clate	2011/06/2011/15					200 2000			
Box Pre Lee No Nei C 4/ Assigned ther Groups Proit Varager Administrativ Repaired Estar Proster	Receive System emails	No. 0	Tes							
C 42) Assigned ther Groups Pook Varyper Administrativ Registered Administrativ Registered Edmin Publisher	BADCH THE LIBER	@ NO	785							
Assigned their Groups Puole Varyger Aoministration Registerial Author Estror Puolister	0	42								
	Public Variager Administrato Regatered Author Ester Public	v Nove								

can edit team members/individual

information in edit profile section.

User Ma	anager: Add New User		30-0	True & Cana	Save & Tres	G
Account Details		* Basic Settings				
Name		Backend Tempote Stole	Une Defeut		-	
Logn Name 1		Backweit Länguage	in Delaut			
Passaura	Login Name	Frontend Language	Line Detect			
Confirm Passaged	must be offer server (reast server) on the reast	I ottar	the Data	-		
Enar		weight Side	Une Certaux		*	
Registration Date		Time Zone	Une Deleur		-	
Last Visit Date						
Receive System ema	es e No Yes					
Brock this User	<ul> <li>No</li> <li>Yes</li> </ul>					
10	0					
Assigned User Gr	ospa					
C Public						
Manager						
Administ	anor					
- and a second						

User Manager: The authorized users

can add new members into different

UTP MOR team in the add new user section.

Art	icle Manager: Articles				0		0 1 	e Check in	Tast.	Ciptore
Articles	alegence (reatined Amilies									
Fitter	Search Clear			Select State	• Select Category		fact formation	Same Autor (	a -54	er Lergesj
	Firm in.	Published	Instant	Category	Onlering	Астана	Created by	Cene	-	Lange
Adreside	raid Components	0		Generald		itani.	Sector (mark)			
Anthen I	Module Net-month()	0		Comer Wolkins		1.25	See Ger			24
Antele G	ategones Mobile sis componentrolate	0		Colored Milderen		Pigent.	Same of the local			
Atom	Calegory Montain trans calegory modules	0		Control Manufax		PLDM	Pager Part			.4
Australia	er Partes. Konnen (2011	0		Test (me		have	Tager start			
Actions	Cation Dente electric	0		Pages		P52084	Sam Day			.43
Same I	Andum .	0		Dispara Mentanov		1.04				
Begrne	es. (montes)	0		20135		2.24	factors that		5	N
Blue Mo	Lintant Rain Forget	-								

Article Manager: This section where the authorized users can manage their articles that to be update and display on the fly into energy website regarding MOR reports.

#### 4.5 Project Interface

The examples of dynamic contents have been based on drawing data from databases and moving the information to the website in the appropriate context needed by the user. Information can be further customized by drawing information topics based on the needs of particular circumstances.

Customization addresses several potential issues involved in dynamic content. The connection between customization and dynamic delivery is that static customization refers to variations that are preassembled by authors. These variations are published and are available to the user group who navigates or search the site according to customization parameters. Dynamic customization refers to variations that are assembled on the fly from the repository.

The current development of the website is being run in a localhost server environment. The installation of Wamp server which consists of phpmyadmin, Apache server, and mysql. The administration of the website design is being managed using Joomla 1.7 software. The design and content are currently in basic stages and will be improved from time to time.

The website requires author authentication before they proceed with the updating the article of the website. Once login is successful, it will then allow the authors to change the information in the article without requiring permission from the administrator of the website. With this, many authors can update their article on the fly and this definitely save their time and user friendly.

# **Project Interface version 1.0**

# Front end of system/website.



The user (Author 1) login into the website.



Edit function is now available when Author 1 successfully login into the website.



Authors can update the article in the website and change the content. In this example, author wants to insert a new picture into the article.



The article is successfully saved and posted in the website on the fly.

### 4.5.1 The Authorization Level of User for the Systems

The Super Administrator has the highest authority in the system which the ITMS will have the full authority of the website. The role is given to the UTP ITMS department to make the system install into the institution's server and live the system as functional energy website for UTP Mission Oriented Research. The super administrator of the website will only monitor the website from a bird's eye view. Any other event or article updates within the website is handle by the respective team leaders which will be assign by the super administrator. The super administrator will assign selected few team leaders with username and password for them to log in via the website itself and from the back end of the system which they will have to install and use as back end user of the website (Joomla! CMS). The back end of the system is where the team leader can create, edit and publish the articles into UTP Mission Oriented Research website.

A lecturer which is not the team leaders is registered as author in this system. With this, only the team leader (registered system user) can create new articles into the website and publishes them. As for author, they only can edit the website from the front end, and after editing, they can publish it without going into the system's back end. The system will assign like example, Mr. Faizal as author\_1. This will allow author\_1 only to edit the website, and publish them on the fly without having to inform the admin or their team leaders to change the article for the particular lecturer/team members of the Mission Oriented Research group. The reason author is not allow to create articles is due to information consistency and integrity issue that might occur in the system.

.

Public user may only view the website as it is live. They do not have the authority to do anything, as the website is for the registered and authorized user only. It is because we do not want the website to be like social media where anyone can post anything in the website and yet would create a lot of problem to the lecturers/website users of the MOR website.

# Use Case Diagram



# CHAPTER 5 CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDATION

### Conclusion

In conclusion, this project is able to serve its objective presented in the earlier section of this paper. In the end, it is expected that the system should:

- Be able to design and develop a new edit functionality to UTP energy website for the lecturers to update their reports and articles in real time basis.
- Be able to provide solution to the admin and the lecturers so that both party may benefits from the information being publish at user level.
- Able to increase awareness among the lecturers and the team members regard to their respective research team about the latest update in the UTP energy website on mission oriented research (MOR) report
- Able to increase efficiency of the updates by having the mission oriented research (MOR) report updates on the fly.

This project's results and outcomes have proven to be both relevant and beneficial to the users. This project highlights the enhancement for UTP energy website regard to provide the user to have personal account with login ID and having the authority to update each user's articles. The main contribution of this project is the user for the UTP energy website may have the authority to publish their Mission Oriented Report (MOR) on the fly.

#### Future Recommendation for Work Expansion and Continuation

- Focus on improving the GUI interface and user preferences of the system.
- Suggest creating secure edit functionality by having captcha or password prompting automation in the system.
- Ensures that notifying users via email blast to registered users.
- Firewall protection against virus or malware in the network for the articles that being shared or posted in the system.
- Users may get email notifications once in a month to remind them to update their article in MOR report website.

### References

- 1. Barrie M. North. 2008 Joomla! : A User's Guide : Building a successful Joomla! powered website. Boston, MA, Pearson Education.
- Eckerson, W. (1999b). Business portals: Drivers, definitions, and rules. Boston, MA: Patricia Seybold Group. [online], April 2000. [http://www.viador.com/pdfs/SeyboldWhitePaper.pdf].
- Eckerson, W. (1999c). Plumtree blossoms: New version fulfills enterprise portal requirements. Boston, MA: Patricia Seybold Group, (June). [online], April 2000. [http://www.plumtree.com/moreinfo/specialoffer.htm].
- Murray, G. (1999). *The portal is the desktop*. Intraspect, (May/June). [online], October 1999.
  [http://archives.groupcomputing.com//index.cfm?fuseaction=viewarticle&Cont entID=166].
- Reynolds, H., & Koulopoulos, T. (1999). Enterprise knowledge has a face. *Intelligent Enterprise*, 2(5), 29–34, (March). [online], April 2000. [http://www.intelligententerprise.com/db\_area/archives/1999/993003/feat1.sht ml].
- 6. http://vimeo.com/2531301; Joomla 1.5 edit articles video tutorial.
- 7. http://www.metacafe.com/tags/joomla\_user\_edit/ ; Joomla 1.5 user edit video tutorial.
- Dennis, A., Wixom, B.H., Tegarden, D. (2005) System Analysis and Design, 2<sup>nd</sup> edn. Massachusetts: John Wiley & Sons.
- 9. http://www.htmlgoodies.com/beyond/mobile/web-development-forandroid-devices-mobile-joomla.html
- 10. docs.joomla.org/Understanding\_section\_categories\_and\_articles